P.C. GOYAL & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
B-3/2 TOP FLOOR PASCHIM VIIAR
' New Dethi-110 063

INBEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
Thie Members of TIMARPUR OKHLA WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TIMARPUR OKHLA WASTE MANAGEMENT
COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315 March,

2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows or the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
[Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 o th
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for sateguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
thal were vperdling effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and famr view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

13

Auditors’ Responsibility _

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based an our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Scction
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requiremerts and plan and
perform the audil v vblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due W [raud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internai linancial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall preséntation
of the financial statements. '
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date. '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure-1 a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of thuse bouks;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Change in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 as
amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Annexure-2.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2015, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as on March 31, 2018:
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ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
tor material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iil. There is no amount payable towards investor education and protection fund in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereunder.

For P.C. Goyal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Wtion No. 002368N
. 72

(M.P, Jain)

Partner

M. No. 082407
Dated: 18™ May,2018
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE-1 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of TIMARPUR OKHLA WASTE
MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2018)

1.

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) A major portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management in
accordance with a phased programmed of verification once in two years adopted by the
company. In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and the nature of its assets. To the best of our knowledge, no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property. Hence, para 1(c) of the order for
reporting on title deed of immovable property held in name of the Company is not applicable.

As explained to us, the management during the year has physically verified inventories. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and no discrepancies noticed during
physical verification of inventories.

According to the information and the explanations given to us, the company has not granted

- any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liahility partnership or other

parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the order are not
applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not granted any loans or given any guarantee and security covered under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{iv) of
the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits undar
the provisions of scction 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions
of the companies Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time. No order has been passed with respect to Section 73 to 76, by the Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reseive Bank of India or any Court o any
other tribunal. ;

We Liave broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the company
pursuant to the Rules wade by tie Ceulrdl Guvernment for the maintenance ot cost records
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the company’s products and are
of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained. We
have, however, not made a detailed examination of records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.
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10.

i n

12,

13.

14.

15.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’ state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there are
no undisputed dues outstanding as at 31st March, 2018 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues in
respect of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and
value added tax wherever applicable to the company which have not been deposited with-the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

In our opinion, on the basis of books and records examined by us and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
to banks. The company does not have any dues to financial institutions, government or
debenture holders.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer or
debt instruments. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were raised, other than
temporary deployment pending allocation.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
Management and based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have heen informed that no
case of frauds has been committed on or by the Company or by its officers or employees during
the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act, and where applicable the details
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private allotment of shares or fully

or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of

the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with him as covered under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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16.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934. Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For P.C. Goyal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

M. No. 082407
Dated: 18t May,2018
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE-2 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure refeioed Lo in onre repore of ¢ven date Lo the members of TIMARPUR OKHIA WASTE
MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 315t March,
2018 _

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TIMARPUR OKHLA WASTE
MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 315t March, 2018 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reparting hased nn our audit. We conducted our audit in accordaice willl U Gulddance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable gssurance ahant whether adequate internal financial controls over finaidial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated cffectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control bhased on the
assessed riski The procedures selected depend on the audilor's judgment, including the assessinent of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materidal misstalenenls due
to errur ur [raud tay oceur and not be detected. Also, projections ot any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial cuntiul vver finaucial roporng may become inadequate because vl Clianiges i conditivng, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
gystom over financial reporting and such internal findicidl cottiols vver fnanclal reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI

For P.C. Goyal & Co,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Begistration No. 002368N
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(M.P. ]ainﬁ'/

Partner

M. No. 082407
Dated: 18th May,2018
Place: New Delhi




Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018
CIN No.U37100UP2005PTC069574

(Amount in €)

Particulars Note No Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 2,861,417,376 2,774,667,033
(b) Capital work-in-progress 23,649,728 148,415,347
(c) Intangible assets 2 259,712 284,790
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other financial assets 3 27,500,479 5 173,885
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 4 59,351,915 58,127,426
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 89,105,380 57,302,229
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 6 4,504,851 4,398,601
(iii) Other financial assets 7 162,539,144 256,003,582
(c) Current tax assets (Net) 8 - 975,913
(d) Other current assets 9 6,200,061 = 9,330,122
TOTAL ASSETS 3,234,528,646 3,309,678,928
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital * 10 599,950,000 599,950,000
(b) Other Equity 939,461,995 835,334,871
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
" (a) Financial Liabilities ‘
(i) Borrowings 11 963,941,429 1,147,849,324
(ii) Other financial liabilities 12 - 8,525,891
(b) Provisions 13 4,329,503 -
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 11,033,084 -
(d) Other non-current liabilities 15 85,714,285 90,476,150
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 221,834,146 208,344,847
(i) Trade payables 17 14,513,185 16,495,102
(iii) Other financial liahilities 18 371,990,138 395,948,616
(b) Other current liabilities 19 14,052,814 6,754,087
(c) Provisions 20 159,282 -
(U) Cutieiil Laa Nabllites (iel) 11 7,348,783 " -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LJABILITIES 3,234,528,646 3,309,678,928
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements 28

As per our report of even date attached
For P.C. Goyal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002368N

Par‘tner
M.No. 082407

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 18th May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Ligited

Director

DIN - 05277483

Neeésh Gupta
Whole Time Director
DIN - 06687420

Manoj Kﬁar Agarwal

CFO



Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

(Amount in )

Particulars Nate s Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
I Revenue from operations 22 578,369,390 500,777,599
Il Other income 23 6,067,001 - 12,279,632
il Total Income (I+1) 584,436,391 513,057,231
IV Expenses
Employee benefits expense 24 88,080,679 91,182,461
Finance costs 25 141,589,833 165,252,066
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 97,543,803 88,054,903
Other expenses 27 126,602,570 152,496,079
Total expenses (IV) 453,816,885 496,985,509
V  Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (lll- IV) 130,619,506 _ 16,071,722
VI Exceptional ltems * %
Vii  Profit/(loss) before tax (V-V1) 130,619,506 16,071,722
VIIl Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 15,083,990 16,686
(2) Deferred tax 26,221,485 -
(3) MAT Credit Entitlement (15,083,990) R -
Total Tax Expense (VIII) 26,221,485 16,686
IX  Profit (Loss) for the year (VII-VIII) 104,398,021 16,055,036
X  Other Comprehensive Income
items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
(i) Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (375,308) 679,048
(i) Income tax effect on above 104,411 2 . 2
Total Other Comprehensive Income (270,897) - ol 679,048
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X)(Comprising profit
(loss) and other comprehensive income for the vear) 104,127,124 ___1g,734,084
Xil  Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic {Amount in¥) 1.74 0.27
(2) Diluted (Amount inX) 1.74 0.27
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements 28

As per our report of even date attached
For P.C, Goyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002368N

M.P.Jain
Partner
fvi.No. 082407

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 18th May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
arpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Lignited

rakcak <

Neelesh Gupta
Whole Time Director
DIN - 05277483 .
Manoj Kﬂar Agarwal

DIN - 06687420
CFO



Timarpur Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Financial Statements
Note No-28

1. Corporate and General Information

Timarpur Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited (“the Company”) is domiciled and incorporated in India. The
registered office of the Company is situated at A-1, UPSIDC Industrial Area, Nandgaon Road, Kosi Kalan, Mathura — 2181403,
Uttar Pradesh.

The Company is a Power Generation Company with a capacity of 20.9 MW Waste to Energy project at Okhla, Delhi. The
Company has a 25 years concession for generating and selling clean renewable energy.

2. Basis of preparation

The Annual financial statement have been prepared complying with all Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2015.

The Significant accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements are set out in Note no. 28.3 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Actual results could
vary from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years (refer Note no. 28.4 on critical
accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements).

3.0 Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except following
which have been measured at fair value:;

e financial assets and liabilities except certain Investments and borrowings carried at amortised cost,

e ' defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value,

e derivative financial instruments,

3.2 Property, Plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipmenl are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Assets are depreciated to the residual values on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives based on technical
estimates. Assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end considering the physical condition of
the assets and benchmarking analysis or whenever there are indicators for review of residual value and useful [:fe Freehold
land is not depreciated. Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Category of Assets Years
Building

- Building 40
Equipment & Machinery

- Plant & Machinery 10-40
- Electric Installation 10-25
Other Office Equipments

- Computer equipment 3

- Office equipment 3-25
- Furniture & fixture 5

- Vehicles 10




Timarpur Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited
Statement ot Signiticant Accounting Policies & Notes to Financial Statements

Note No-28

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on the date of disposal or retirement. During the year overhauling cost of Boiler & turbine is estimated to have useful life

of 4 years.

3.3 Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised a) when the Company controls the asset, b) it is probable that future economic
benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and c) the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Computer software’s are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over the
period of license, generally not exceeding five years on straight line basis. The assets’ useful lives are reviewed at each financial

year end.

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the Statement ol Cash Flows, cdsh and cash eyuivalenls consisls ol cash and short term deposlts, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrall as Lhey are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.5 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except scrap, which is valued at net realizable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective present location and condition. Cost is computed on the weighted

average basis.

3.6 Employee benefits

a) Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the
related services are rendered.

b) Leave encashment being a short term benefit is accounted for using the projected unit credit method, on the basis of
actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
evperience adjurtmentes and changoe in actuarial accumptions are charged or oredited to profit and lusy in the peried in which

they drise.

¢) Conlribulion Lo Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made in accordance with the statute, and is recognised as an
expense in the year in which employees have rendered services.

d) The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the basis of
actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from

experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in the Statement of profit and loss.

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for gratuity, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund. The fund is managed by a trust. The trust has taken policies from an insurance company.

3.7 Foreign currency reinstatement and translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

currency.

Page | 2




Timarpur Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Financial Statements
Note No-28

(b)  Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Subsequently monetary items are translated at closing exchange rates of balance sheet date and the resulting exchange
difference recognised in profit or loss. Differences arising on settlement of monetary items are also recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange component of the gain
or loss arising on fair valuation of non-monetary items is recognised in line with the gain or loss of the item that gave rise to
such exchange difference.

The Company has availed the exemption available in IND AS 101, to continue capitalisation of foreign currency fluctuation on
long term foreign currency monetary liabilities outstanding on transition date.

3.8 Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

a) Financial Assets

Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value through Profit
or Loss, depending on its business model for managing those financial assets and the assets contractual cash flow
characteristics.

Subsequent measurements of financial assets are dependent on initial categorisation. For impairment purposes significant
MlitdiiLld] dssels ate Lested un dit lndividud] basls, other Tlinancldl dsses dre dssessed collectively in groups that shatre similar

credit risk characteristics.

i Trade receivables

A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect to the amount due from customers on account of goods sold or
services rendered in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, iess provision for impairment. For some trade receivables the
Company may obtain security in the form of guarantee, security deposit or letter of credil which van be cdlled upon if the
counterparty is in default under the terms of the agreement.

A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to coliect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The estimated impairment losses are recognised in a separate

provision for impairment and the impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other expenses.

Subsequent changes in assessment of impairment are recognised in provision for impairment and the change in impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other expenses.

For toreign currency trade receivable, impairment is assessed after reinstatement at closing rates.

Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount of trade receivable
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other expenses.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to other Income

il. Investment in equity shares

Investment in equity securities are initially measured at fair value. Any subsequent fair value gain
Profit or Loss if such investments in equity securities are held for trading purposes. The fair val
equity securities are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. |



Timarpur Okhia Waste Management Company Private Limited
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Financial Statements
Note No-28

b) Financial Liabilities

At initial recognition, all financial liabilities other than fair valued through profit and loss are recognised initially at fair value
less transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability carried at fair
value through profit or loss is expensed in profit or loss.

i Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. The Company has not
designated any financial liabilities upon initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are at each reporting date at fair value with all the changes recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

ii. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method (“EIR”) except for those designated in an effective hedging relationship. The carrying value of
borrowings that are designated as hedged items in fair value hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are
adjusted to record changes in fair values attributable to the risks that are hedged in effective hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables
A payable is classified as ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or services

received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company
prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payabies are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liability
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial iiability that has been extinguished or transferred ta annther party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other

ileutinie ut Tinidiice Lusls.

3.9 Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its
foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair vaiue an the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of each period. The method
of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, on
the nature of the item being hedged. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly

to profit or loss.

3.10 Equity share capital

Ordinary shares are ciassified as equity. Incremental costs net of taxes directly attributable to t iSa 0 tl rfewnequity shares
are reduced from retained earnings, net of taxes. Q(') o
* X
Q P

% o,

g
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8.11 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporarily deployment of funds) as part of
the cost of such assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds. :

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs
capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

3,12 Tanalivi

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and delerred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the tax
is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. Any subsequent change in direct tax on ilems initially
recognised in equily or other comprehensive income is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income, such change
could he for change in tax rate.

Current tax provision is computed for Income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under the provisions of
the applicable Income Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be availabie against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred
tav liahilities are off set, and presanted as net.

The carrying amount of deferrad tax assets is roviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
3.13 Revenue recognition and other operating income

Sale of goods

Rewvanua is recognized at the fair value of concidoration roceived or receivable and represents the net invoice value ul guuls
supplied to third parties after deducting discounts, volume rebates and outgoing sales tax and are recognized either on
delivery or on transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods. Revenue is inclusive of excise duly and excise
duly Is presenled supdidiely Lo present revenue net of excise duty.

Revenue from the sale of power is recognised when the electricity is supplied and measured based on contractually agreed
taritt rates.

Other Operating income

Incentives on exports and other Government incentives related to operations are recognised in books after due consideration
of certainty of utilization/receipt of such incentives.
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Other Income

Interest
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

3.14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to

participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential

equity shares, if any

3.15 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate ran he made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of moncy is material, provisions are
discounted usmg equivalent period government securities interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect

the current best estimate.

Contingencies

Contingent liabililies are distlused whun there Is o pussiUle obligdauon arlsing from past vents, the existence of winch will be
confirmed anly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed
in the Notes to the kinancial Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

3.16 Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the Statement of Profit and Loss from ordinary activities which
are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the
performance of the Company.

3.17 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liahilities and current liabiiities
i deeorddnee wilh Schedule Hl, Diviston I of Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA. !

At dssel s eldssifled gs current when it ls:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is classified as current when:

a) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents. |

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

3.18 Government grants

Government grants with a condition to purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets are initially measured based
on grant receivable under the scheme, such grants are recognised in the Profit and Loss Statement on a systematic basis over
the useful life of the asset. Amount of benefits receivable in excess of grant income accrued based on usage of the assets is
accounted as deferred income. Changes in estimates are recognised prospectively over the remaining life of the assets.
Government revenue grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the Profit and Loss Statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

3.19 Recent Ind AS Pronouncement

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

in March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified Ind AS 115 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers) which
would be applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. This Standard establishes the principles that an
entity shall apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. Revenue is recognised when a customer
obtains control of a promised good or service. The standard replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction contracts
and related appendices.

The Company is in the process of assessing the detailed potential impact of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customer
on its financial statements and related disclosures. Presently, the Company is not able to reasonably estimate the impact that
application of Ind AS 115 is expected to have on its financial statements.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

in March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration which would be applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. The appendix
clarifies how to determine the date of transaction for the exchange rate to be used on initial recognition of a related asset,
expense or income where an entity pays or receives consideration in advance for foreign currency-denominated contracts.

Presently the Company is not able to reasonably estimate the impact of the application of the appendix B on the financial
statements.

4. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates,assumptions and
judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement:

{a) Property, plant and equipment

External adviser or internal technical team assess the remaining useful lives and resid
equipment. Management bhelieves that the assigned useful lives and residual value are reaso
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On transition to IND AS, the Company has adopted optional exemption under Ind AS 101 for fair valuation of property, plant
and equipment, subsequent to fair valuation depreciation has been charged on fair valued amount less estimated salvage
value. Praperty, plant and equipment also represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. Therefore, the
estimates and assumptions made to determine their carrying value and related depreciation are critical to the Company’s
financial position and performance.

(b) Intangibles

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. Management believes that assigned
useful lives are reasonable.

Before transition to IND AS, the company has revisited the useful life of the assets and the impact of change in life on transition
is considered in opening carrying values. Also all Intangibles are carried at net book value on transition.

(c) Income taxes

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The
Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may
differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

(d) Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with

accuracy.
(e) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to be

collectibie.
(f) Insurance claims

Insurance claims are recognised when the Company have reasonable certainty of recovery. Subsequently any change in
recoverability is provided for.

(g) Liquidated damages

Liquidated damages payable are estimated and recorded as per contractual terms; estimate may vary from actuals as levy by
customer.

5. Financial risk management

5.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s principal financiai liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company’s operations. The Company has loan and other
receivables, trade and other receivabies, and cash and short term deposits thal arise directly from its operations. The Company
also enters into derivative transactions. The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as
equity price risk and commodity risk Financial instruments affected by market risk include loa @mﬂﬁbg Y
investments, and derivative financial instruments. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair ¥
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or future cash flows of a financial instrument will tluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. This is based un Uk
financial assets and financial liabilities held as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.

ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss.

i) Liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations
without incurring unacceptable losses.

Risk management is carried out by the treasury department under policies approved by the board of directors. The treasury
team identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operating units. The board
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, and credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and
investment of excess liquidity.

Market Risk

The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post-employment
benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Statement of Profit
and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. The Company’s activities expose it to a
variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company
uses derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps of varying maturity
depending upon the underlying contract and risk management strategy to manage its exposures to foreign exchange
fluctuations and interest rate. '

(a) Foreign exchange risk and sensitivity

The Company transacts business in Indian Rupee and in foreign currency. The Company has obtained foreign currency loans
and has foreign currency trade payables and receivables and is therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk. Certain
transactions of the Company act as a natural hedge as a portion of both assets and liabilities are denominated in similar foreign
currencies. For the remaining exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Company adopts a policy of selective hedging based on
risk perception of the management. Foreign exchange hedging contracts are carried at fair value.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD to the Indian Rupee with all other variables held constant. The
impact on the Company’s profit before tax and other comprehensive income due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities including foreign currency derivatives hedging contracts is given below:

(Amount in 3)

Particulars Net monetary items in Change in Effect on profit
respective currency currency before tax
outstanding on reporting exchange
date rate
lor the year ended March 31, 2010
uso (6,081,800) I 596 (10,827,321)
-5% 19,827,321

For the year ended March 31, 2017
uso (7,606,000) +5% (24,660,554)

i -5% 24,660,554
The assumed movement in exchange rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.
Summary of exchange difference accounted in Statement of Profit and Loss:
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Particulars

{Amount in %)

Far the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

i Currency fluctuations

Net foreign exchange gain/(losses) shown as operating expenses 224,924 (1,637,505}
Derivatives

Currency forwards shown as finance cost 18,154,442 (4,864,596)
Interest rate swaps shown as finance cost 17,688,129 28,731,507
Total 36,067,495 22,229,406

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date

(Foreign Currency)

Particulars

Interest Bearlng Borrowings
usb

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

6,084,800

7,606,000

(b) Interest rate risk and sensitivity

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to long term debt. The Company has
entered into interest rate swap contracts, in which it agrees to exchange, at specific intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed upon principal amount. The management also maintains a
portfolio mix of floating and fixed rate debt. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the company to cash flow interest rate
risk. As of March 31, 2018, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 50.47% of the Company’s
borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest (March 31, 2017: 46.79%). Borrowings issued at fixed interest rate exposes the

company to fair value interest rate risk.

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of borrowing cost on floating rate portion
of loans and burowings and luans un which inlerest rale swaps are taken.

(Amount in %)

soor Increase/Decreas | effect onh profic
Interest rate sensitivity A 5 i
e in basis points before tax
For the year ended March 31, 2018
INR +50 -1,677,828
-50 1,677,828
YEN +50 -1,590,346
-50 1,590,346
usD +50 73,671
=50 /3,671
For the year ended March 31, 2017
INR +50 -2,216,750
-50) 2,216,750
YEN +50 -1,923,694
-50 1,923,694
usb +50 -93,405
-50 93,405

The assumed movement in basis points
environment.

mbservable market

&

@
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(Amount in %)
Particulars ; Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Expense / (gain) recognized in profit and loss account -35,842,571 -23,866,911

towards interest rate swaps

Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks, mutual funds and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

e Trade Receivables

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as credit track
record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. The Company monitors the payment track record
of the customers. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored .The Company evaluates Lthe concentration of risk
with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in
largely independent markets. The Company has also taken advances and security deposits from its customers & distributors,
which mitigate the credit risk to an wilunl.

The ageing of unsecured trade receivable is as below:
The ageing analysls of trade recelvables as on the reporting date is as tollows:
(Amount in )

i

Past due g
Particulars Neither due nor upto 6 6to 12 Above 12 Total
impaired months months ‘'months

As at March 31, 2018
Trade receivable
Unsecured considered good 77,354,128 2,028,101 3,667,956 6,055,195 89,105,380
| As at March 31, 2017 ' '

Trade receivable
Unsecured considered good 51,247,034 - - 6,055,195 57,302,229

e  Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service standards to select
the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Generally, the balances are maintained with the institutions with
which the Company has aiso availed borrowlngs. The Compdny does nol mdlnlaln slgniticant cash and deposit balances other
than those required for its day to day operalions.

Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to; at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements.. In
case of temporary short fall in liquidity to repay the bank borrowing/operational short fall , the company uses mix of capital
infusion and borrowing from its holding company. However, the company envisage that such short fall is temporary and the
company would generate sufficient cash flows as per approved projections.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date.
(Amount in )

[ias ) Ageing as at 31st March 2018 !
| ¥ Carrying ; FE i
{ Particulars On demand 6-12 Total |
i Amount | <6 months > 1 years |
! | months :
| 1
i Interest bearing borrowings 1,535,469,646 | 191,657,677 | 174,847,036 | 205,023,505 963,941,428 | 1,535,469,646 :
| Trade payable 14,513,185 - | 14,513,185 - - 14,513,185 |
| T [ ‘
| Other liabilities 22,296,067 - | 22,296,067 _AG0oYal B\ - 22,296,067 |
Total 1,572,278,898 | 191,657,677 | 211,656,288 | 205,023,508 Vi | 1,572,278,898 |

e comeh )

Page | 11
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Sariving Ageing as at 31st March 2017
Particulars On demand 6-12 Total

Amount < 6 months > 1 years

months

Interest bearing borrowings 1,648,885,882 | 205,500,000 | 127,804,356 | 167,732,203 | 1,147,849,323 | 1,648,885,882
Trade payable 116,495,102 - | 16,495,102 - - 16,495,102
Derivative liabilities 8,525,891 - - - 8,525,891 8,525,891
Other liabilities 103,256,905 | 65,149,666 | 38,107,239 - - 103,256,905
Total 1,777,163,780 | 270,649,666 | 182,406,697 | 167,732,203 | 1,156,375,214 | 1,777,163,780

The Company is required to maintain ratios {including total debt to EBITDA / net worth, EBITDA to gross interest, debt service
coverage ratio and secured coverage ratio) as mentioned in the loan agreements at specified levels. In the event of failure to
meet any of these ratios these loans become callable at the option of lenders, except where exemption is provided by lender.

The Company has the following undrawn borrowing facilities (Unused lines of credit):

(Amount in )
Particulars AsE AS AL
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Secured Z 27,155,153
Total - 27,155,153

Interest rate and currency of borrowings

The below details do not necessarily represents foreign currency or interest rate exposure to the income statement, since the
Group has taken derivatives for offsetting the foreign currency and interest rate exposure.

(Amount in ¥)

Pailiculais Tuldl Buttuwlig | Floallng Rdle Flxed Rate Welghted
Borrowing Borrowing Average Rate

uspo 396,546,416 16,162,160 380,384,256 8.48%
YEN 348,856,557 348,896,557 - 12.14%
INR 790,026,673 395,387,331 394,639,342 11.70%
Total as on 31st March 2018 1,535,469,646 760,446,048 775,023,598 10.83%
usD 493,211,070 20,101,950 473,109,120 8.59%
YEN 414,002,486 414,002,486 - 12.47%
INR 741,672,326 443,349,915 298,322,411 12.52%
Total as on 31st March 2017 1,648,885,882 877,454,351 771,431,531 11.07%

Competition and price risk

The Company faces competition from local and foreign competitors. Nevertheless, it believes that it has competitive advantage
in terms of high quality products and by continuously upgrading its expertise and range of products to meet the needs of its
customers.

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to maximize the shareholder value. The Company’s primary objective when managing capital is to ensure that
it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to support its business and provide maximum returns for shareholders. The Company also proposes to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capitai. No changes were made WSI jectives, policies or
processes during the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017. O (EO
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For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, compulsorily convertible debentures,
share premium and all other equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables less cash and short term deposits, excluding discontinued operations.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as loans

and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The Gearing ratio for FY 2017-18 and FY 2016-17 is an under:

(Amount in )

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Loans and borrowings 1,535,469,646 1,648,885,882
Less: cash and cash equivalents 4,504,851 4,398,601
Net debt 1,530,964,795 1,644,487,281
Equity 1,539,411,995 1,435,284,871
Total capital 3,070,376,790 3,079,772,152
Gearing ratio 49.86% 53.40%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.
Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been
no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing for reported periods.

6. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

SeLoul beluw Is 4 compdrison by €lass of the carrying amolnhts and fair value of the Lompany's tinancial instruments that are

recognised in the financial statements.

(Amount in %)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Carrying

Carrying

Fair Value Fair Value
amount amount

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and

loss

Derlvallves - not deslgnated as hedgling Ihstruments

- Forward contracts 42,055,673 42,055,673 - -

- Interest rate swaps -14,738,993 -14,738,993 - -

Financial assets designated at amortised cost

Cash and bank balances 4,504,851 4,504,851 4,398,601 4,398,601

Trade and ather receivanles 29,105,380 89,105,380 57,302,229 57,302,229

Other financial assets 162,722,943 162,722,943 256,177,467 256,177,467

283,649,854 283,649,854 317,878,297 317,878,297

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit

or loss

Derivatives - not designated as hedging instruments

- Forward Contracts - - -23,901,231 -23,901,231

- Interest rate swaps : d 32,427,122 32,427,122

Financial liabilities designated at amortised cost

Borrowings- fixed rate 775,023,598 775,023,598 771,431,531 771,431,531

Borrowings- floating rate 760,446,048 760,446,048 877,454,351 877,454,351

Trade & other payabies 14,513,185 14,513,185 16,495,102 16,495,102

Other financial liabilities 22,296,067 22,296,067 103,256,905 103,256,905
. | 1,572,278,898 | 1,572,278,898 | 1,777,163,780 | 1,777,163,780
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Fair Valuation techniques

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant
data available. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1) Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

2) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables / borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters
such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, credit risk and other risk characteristics. Fair value of variable
interest rate borrowings is not material different from carrying values. For fixed interest rate borrowing fair value is
determined by using the discounted cash flow (DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowings
rate. Risk of non-performance for the company is considered to be insignificant in valuation.

3) The fair values of derivatives are estimated by using pricing models, where the inputs to those models are based on
readily observable market parameters basis contractual terms, period to maturity, and market parameters such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and volatility. These models do not contain a high level of subjectivity as the
valuation techniques used do not require significant judgement, and inputs thereto are readily observable from
actively quoted market prices. Management has evaluated the credit and non-performance risks associated with its
derivative counterparties and believe them to be insignificant and not warranting a credit adjustment. :

4) The fair value of fixed interest bearing loans, borrowings and deposits is estimated by discounting future cash flows
using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

5) IND AS 101 allow Company to fair value property, plant and machinery on transition to IND AS, the Company has fair
valued property, plant and equipment, and the fair valuation is based on replacement cost approach.

Fair Value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities, grouped into Level 1 to
Level 3 as described below:

e Quoted prices / published NVA (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). It includes fair
value of financial instruments traded in active markets and are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date and financial instruments like mutual funds for which net assets value( NAV} is published mutual fund operators
at the balance sheet date.

e |nputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable tor the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices) (level 2). It includes fair value of the financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on the company specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable. Derivatives included interest rate swaps and foreign currency forwards.

s« [nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). It
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tabie provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities, grouped into Level 1 to

Level 3 as described below:

(Amount in T)

Assets / Liabilities measured at fair value( As at March 31, 2018
Accounted) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Derivatives - not designated as hedging instruments
- Forward contracts 42,055,673 |
- Interest rate swaps -14,738,993
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Financial Statements

(Amount in )

Assets / Liabilities measured at fair value( As at March 31, 2017
Accounted) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities ’
Derivatives - not designated as hedging instruments

- Forward contracts -23,901,231

- Interest rate swaps 32,427,122

Assets [ Liabilities for which fair value is disclosed

(Amount in )

) As at March 31, 2018
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities
Borrowings- fixed rate 775,023,598
Other financial liabilities 22,296,067
{Amount in T)
’ As at March 31, 2017
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities
Borrowings- fixed rate 771,431,531
Other financial liabilities 103,256,905

During the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfer Into ahd out of Level 3 falr value measurements.

Following table describes the valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation within level 2 and 3, and quantitative
information about significant unobservable inputs for fair value measurements within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as of
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively:

a) Assets / Liabilities measured at fair value

O
a
*

o

6:?

’2'9,9

Fair Quantitative
; Valuation information
Particulars value . Inputs used .
h lechnigue about significant
hierarchy :
unobservable inputs
Financial assets
Derivatives - not designated
as hedging instruments
- Forward contracts Level 2 Market valuation | Forward foreign currency
techniques exchange rates, Interest rates to ik
discount future cash flow
- Interest rate swaps Level 2 Market valuation | Prevailing/forward interest
technigues rates in market, Interest rates to -
discount future cash flow
Financial liahilities
Derivatives - not designated as
hedging instruments
- Forward contracts Level 2 Market valuation | Forward foreign currency
technigques exchange rates, Interest rates to -
discount future cash flow
- Interest rate swaps Level 2 Market valuation | Prevailing/forward interest rates
technigues in market, Interest rates to
discount future cash flow

&
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Financial Statements
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b) Assets / Liabilities for which fair value is disclosed

Fair value
Particulars hierarchy Valuation technique Inputs used
Financial liabilities
Other borrowings- fixed rate Level 2 Discounted Cash Flow | Prevailing interest rates in
market, Future payouts
Other financial liabilities Level 2 Discounted Cash Flow | Prevailing interest rates to
discount future cash flows

7. Segment information

Information about primary segment

The Company is engaged primarily into Power Generation. The Company’s primary segment as identified by management is
Electricity as products. The company operates into one primary segment.
Segments have been identified taking into account nature of product and differential risk and returns of the segment.

Information about Geographical Segment — Secondary

The Company’s operations are located in India and company’s product is also sold in India. Therefore, there is no geographical
segment.

8. Derivative financial instruments

The Company:uses foreign currency forward and Interest rate swap contracts to manage some of its transactions exposure,
The details of derivative financial instruments are as follows:

(Amount in )
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Assets
Interest rate Swap -14,738,993 -
Forward/options -
Composite Swap * 42,055,673 -
Total o, 27,316,680 -
Liabilities
Interest rate Swap . - 32,427,122
rorward/options - -
Composite Swap * - -23,901,231
Total : - 8,525,891
Bifurcation of above derivatives
instrument in Current & Non-Current
Current (Liability)/Asset -
Non-Current (Liability)/Asset 27,316,680 -8,525,891
* Interest rate Swap and Forward Contract

Interest rate swaps

The company has variable interest foreign currency borrowings (ECB USD}, to offset the risk of variation in interest rates, the
company has entered into, fix pay and variable receipt, interest rate swaps, these swap contracts are in USS. Qutstanding
amortised notional value of loan for swap contracts as on March 31, 2018 is USS$ 6.0848 million.

Composite Swap Forward Contracts

The company has variable interest foreign currency borrowings (ECB IPY), to offset the risk of varj_a_ggn in interest rates, the
company has entered into, fix pay and variable receipt, interest rate swaps and forward contract site swaps are in

PY. Outstanding amortised notional value of loan for composite swap as on March 31, 2018 is ey ﬁﬁg n.
Q. .
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9. Retirement benefit obligations

I Expense recognised for Defined Contribution plan

(Amountin X)

Pa b lilare Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Company's contribution to provident fund 1,618,105 2,869,685
Company's contribution to ESI 93,636 25,242
Company's contribution to superannuation fund y - . -
Total 1,711,741 2,894,927

Il Movement in Defined Benefit Obligation

{Amountin X)

leave encashment

Particulars Gratuity (funded) (unfunded)
Present value of obligation - April 1, 2017 - -
Current service cost 909,102 4,215,668
Interest cost = 2
Benefits paid - (746,393)
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out 3,601,912 -
Remeasurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) 932,955 -
Present value of obligation - March 31, 2018 5,443,969 3,469,275
Present value ot obligation - April 1, 2016 U =
Current service cost - -
Interest cost - =
Benefits paid - -
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out - -
Remeasurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) - -
Present value of obligation - March 31, 2017 - -
Il. , Movement in Plan Assets — Gratuity
(Amountin X)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

Viarch 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Expected return on plan assets
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out
Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain / (loss)

254,900
3,601,912
10,000

557,647

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

4,424,459

Present value of obligation
Net funded status of plan

5,443,969
(1,019,510

Actual return on plan assets

812,547
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V.

Recognised in profit or loss

(Amount in X)

Particulars

Compensated

Gratuity

ahsence

Current Service cost

Interest cost ‘
Expected return on plan assets
Remeasurement - Actuarial loss/(gain)
Past service cost -

909,102

(254,900)

4,215,668

For the year ended March 31, 2018

654,202

4,215,668

Current Service cost

interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Remeasurement - Actuarial loss/(gain)
Past service cost

For the year ended March 31, 2017

Actual return on plan assets

812,547

V.

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(Amount in X)

Particulars

Gratuity

Remeasurement - Acturial loss/(gain)
For the year ended March 31, 2018
Remeasurement - Acturial loss/(gain)
For tho yoar ended Mareh 31, 2017

375,308
375,308
(679,048)
(679,048)

VI.

The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Group’s defined benefit obligations are set out below:

Weighted average actuarial assumptions

As at
March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2017

Attrition rate
Discount Rate

Expected Rate of increase in Compensation levels

Expetted Rate of Return on Plan Assets

7.75 % per annum
6.50 % per annum
7.75% per annum

IALM 2006-08
Mortality rate Ultimate -
Expected Average remaining working lives of employees
(years) 24.3 years -

VIl

Estimate of expected Benefit Payments (in absolute terms i.c. Undiscounted)

tAmount In 2)

Particulars Gratuity
01 Apr 2018 to 31 Mar 2019 915,547
01 Apr 2019 to 31 Mar 2020 426,663
01 Apr 2020 to 31 Mar 2021 478,416
01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2022 171,460
01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2023 282,788
01 Apr 2023 onwards 4,237,632
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VI, Statement of Employee benelil provision
(Amountin %)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Gratuity 1,019,510 -
Compensated absences 3,469,275 -
Total 4,488,785 -
X, Current and non-current provision for Gratuity and leave encashment
For the year ended March 31, 2018 {(Amount in %)
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
Current provision 32,071 127,211
Non-current provision 987,439 3,342,064
Tota| Provision 1,019,510 3,469,275
For the year ended March 31, 2017 {(Amount in ¥)
Particulars - Gratuity Leave Encashment
Current provision - -
Non-current provision - -
Total Provision ; - :
X. Employee benefit expenses
{Amount in ¥)
e e heee For the year ended For the yegr egded
: IViarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries and Wages 82,036,080 83,242,334
Costs-defined contribution plan 2,365,943 3,719,207
Welfare expenses 3,678,656 4,220,920
Total ] 88,080,679 91,182,461

OCI presentation of defined benefit plan

-Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan, Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans is shown under OCI
as Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and also the income tax effect on the same.
-Leave encashment cost is in the nature of short term employee benefits,

10. Other disclosures

’

Auditors Remuneration

(Amount in %)

Year ended

Year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

L, statutory Auditors

i. Audit Fee 28,680
ii. Tax Audit Fee e
Total 28,680

27,660
13,800
41,460

11. Borrowing cost and currency fluctuations capitalised

(Amount in 3)

Patticiiars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Currency Fluctuation Capitalised 9,061,502 (27,444,487)
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12. Contingent liabilities
i) Guarantees
(Amount in 3)

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2018

Bank Guarantees issued by the Company's
bankers on behalf of the Company

Total 9,221,216

9,221,216 18,169,201

18,169,201

ii) Capital Commitment

Estimated Amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of advances)

(Amount in )
Particulars e Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Property, Plant and Equipment - 24,652,314

13. Related party transactions

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party, related party
relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exits and with whom
transactions have taken place during reported periods, are:

Related party name and relationship

1. Key Management personnel

5. No. | Name _ Particulars

1 Mr. Umesh Chopra Director

2 Mr. Dhananjaya Pati Tripathi Independent Director

3 Mr. Rakesh Mathur (till 03.08.2017) Independent Director

4 Mr. Neelesh Gupta Whole-time Director

5 Mr. Hemant Kumar (till 18.10.2017) CFO

6 Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal (w.e.f. 28.11.2017) CFO

2. Ultimate Parent, Parent, Fellow Holding, Fellow subsidiaries and fellow step down subsidiaries.
5. No. | Name of the Entity Relationship

1 JITF Infralogistics Limited Ultimate Parent Company
2 JITF Urban Infrastructure Services Limited Parent Company

3 JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited Holding Company

4 JITF Water Infrastructure Limited Fellow Holding

5 Jindal Rail Infrastructure Limited Fellow Holding

6 JITF Water Infra ( Naya Raipur) Limited Fellow Step down Subsidiary
7 JITE ESIPL CETP (Sitarganj) Limited Fellow Step down Subsidiary
8 JITF Industrial Infrastructure Development Company Limited Fellow Step down Subsidiary
9 JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) Limited Fellow Subsidiary

10 JITF Urban Waste Management (Jalandhar) Limited Fellow Subsidiary

11 IITF Lirhan Waste Management (Rathinda) Limited Fellow Subsidiary

12 Jindal Urban Waste Management (Vishakhapatnam) Limited Fellow Subsidiary

13 Jindal Urban Waste Management (Tirupati) Limited Fellow Subsidiary

14 Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

15 Jindal Urban Waste Management (Guntur) Limited Fellow Subsidiary

16 Jindal Urban Waste Management (Jodhpur) Limited Fellow Subsidiary

17 Jindal Urban Waste Management (Jaipur) Limited Fellow Subsidiary
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3. Joint ventures/ associates

S. No. | Name of the Entity Relationship
1 JWIL-SSIL (JV) Joint Venture of fellow holding
2 SMC-JWIL(IV) Joint Venture of fellow holding
3 JWIL-Ranhill (JV) Joint Venture of fellow holding
4 TAPI-JWIL (JV) Joint Venture of fellow holding
5 Eldeco SIDCUL Industrial Park Limited Associate/Joint Venture of fellow holding
6 Ladurner SRL Associate/Joint Venture of holding company
4. Trust under common control
S: Name of the Entity Relationship
No.
1 JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited Employees Group Gratuity Post employment benefit plan
Assurance Schemeoe
2 Timarpur- Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limted Post employment benefit plan
Employees Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Scheme

Related Parties Transactions

(Amount in )

S.NO. | Particulars

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

FY 2017-18

FY 2016-17

FY 2017-18

FY 2016-17

A Transactions

Sale of Capital Items

JITF Urban Waste Management (Bathinda) Limited
Purchase of Capital Items

JITF Urban Waste Management (Bathinda) Limited
Expenses incurred by others and reimbursed by
company

JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited

JITF Water Infrastructure Limited

Interest expense

JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited

Interest Income

JITT Urban Infrastructure Limited

Loan repaid during the year

JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited

Loan taken during the year

JITF Urban infrastructure Limited

15,683,486
524,297

19,619,641

307,500,000

276,000,000

64,748,714

5,775,791

336,000,000

518,000,000

105,730

1,176,271

B Outstanding balances

Equity Share Capital by Holding
JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited
Loan payable

JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited
Payables

JITF Urban infrastructure Limited
Jindal ITF Limited

Receivables

JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited

1,576,050,000

191,657,677

1,576,050,000

205,500,000

64,069,666

5,198,212

1,080,000
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Remuneration to Key Management Personnel

(Amount in )

- Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Short-Term employee benefits* 5,250,292 5,514,921

Post-Employment benefits

- Defined contribution plan$ 283,987 203,742

- Defined benefit plan# 59,095 799,777

Total 5,593,374 6,518,440

* Including bonus, sitting fees and commission on accrual basis and value of perquisites

S Including PF and any other benefit

# As the liability for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on actuarial basis for the company as a whole, amounts
accrued pertaining to key managerial personnel are not included in above.

14. Income Tax Expense

(Amount in T)

Total Tax Exponces

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current tax 15,083,990 16686

Defeiied Taa

-Relating to origination & reversal of temporary differences (26,221,485) oo

-Relating to Change in tax rate - -

MAT Credit Entitlement

-MAT Credit i {(15,083,990)

Tax (expense}/income attributable to current year's profit (26,221,485) 16686
(26,221,405) 16606

Effective tax reconciliation

Numerical reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory latest enacted tax rate in India to

income tax expense reported is as follows:

(Amountin )

Computed tax Income (expense)
Increase/(reduction) in taxes on account of:

(36,338,347)

Description Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Met Loaa(Income) batore taxes (1130,619,506)

Enacted tax rates 27.820% -

Deferred Tax of previous years/reversal in next year (1,419,217) -
Other non deductable expenses 11,536,079 >
Income tax expense reported (26,221,485) -
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15. Deferred Income Tax

The analysis of deferred tax expenses are as under:

{(Amount in ¥)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
_ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Book base and tax base of Fixed Assets (425,920,965) -
(Disallowance)/Allowance(net) under Income Tax 1,597,214 -
Brought forward losses set off 398,102,266 -
Total: (26,221,485) -

Component of tax accounted in OCl and equity ’
(Amount in %)

Description Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Component of OCI ,
Deferred Tax (Gain)/Loss on defined benetfit

(104,411)

16. Earnings per share

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share:

(Number of shares)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Issued equity shares 59,995,000 59,995,000

Weighted average shares outstanding - Basic and Diluted - A 59,995,000 59,995,000

Net profit available to equity holders of the Company used in the basic and diluted earnings per share was determined as

follows:
(Amount in )
Paitiiliins | Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit and loss after tax- B 104,398,021 16,055,036
Basic Earnings per share (B/A) (X) 1.74 0.27
Diluted Earnings per share (B/A) () 1.74 0.27

The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity.

17. Government Grant

Tlie Cutiipaity lids Leen sdiicliviied Quvettiieiil Grdiil of Rs. 10 Crores lrom MInlstry of New and Kenewable thergy (Wit
division) vide letter sanction letter no 10/5/2005 UICA (Vol. IV) dated 30th March 2017 out of which received Rs.10.0 Ci Lill
31st March 2018 (Previous Year Rs.4.50 Cr). The grant is awarded againsl ¢ Cenlial Scheme for “Programme on Energy
Recovery from Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) during the year 2007-08. The Scheme provides financial assistance for setting
up the new projects for Power generation from MSW. The company has received financial assistance at a flat rate of Rs 2
Crore per MW, subject to ceiling of 20% of project cost and Rs.10 crore whichever is less.

In terms of the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS 20) “Accounting for Government Grants”, Amount of grant receivable

in excess of grant income accrued based on remaining life of the project is accounted as Government grant received in
advance and has been credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over remaining life of the project.
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18. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to current years
Classification.

19. Notes 1 to 28 are annexed and form integral part of Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For P.C. Goyal & Co. ‘ Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Neeleé§1

Firm Registration No. 002368N
Gupta

Director

"N)\ Din - 06687420

DIN - 05277483
M.P.Jain

Partrier
M.No. 082407 Manoj Kimar Agarwal
Place : New Delhi CFO

Dated ; 18" May 2018
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Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

A. CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) FROM THE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 130,619,506 16,071,722
Adjustments for :
Add/(Less)

Depreciation 97,543,803 88,054,903

Interest Expenses 176,446,047 188,008,872

Interest Income (532)| 273,989,318 (5,776,209)| 270,287,566
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 404,608,824 286,359,288
Adjustments for :

Inventories (1,224,489) (4,290,805)

Trade Receivables (31,803,151) (9,222,292)

Loans and advances and other assets 64,069,693 (27,654,063)

Trade and Other Payables (67,105,774)| (36,063,721)| 65,325,962 24,158,802
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 368,545,103 310,518,090

Tax Paid ‘ (7,400,714) (982,047)
NET CASH INFLOW / ( OUTFLOW ) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 361,144,389 309,536,043
B. CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Puchase of Property Plant and Faulpment (70,638,5306) (166,186,573)

Interest Received 5,198,744 577,997
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW)FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (65,439,792) (165,908,576)
C. CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid (173,120,609) (175,778,035)

Proceeds/(Loan Repaid) to Subsidiary (13,842,323) 182,000,000

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 27,331,622 (17,513,574)

Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings (135,967,037) (135,796,285)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (295,598,347) (147,087,894)
NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 106,250 (3,460,427)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,398,601 7,859,028

Cash and cash equivalents at end of Lhe year 4,504,851 4,398,601

NOTE:

1. Increase/(decrease) in long term and short term borrowings are shown net of repayments.

2. Figures in bracket indicates cash out flow.

3. The above cash flow stalerment has been prepared under the Indirect method sel out in IND AS - 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'
4. Long term borrowings is net of foreign currency fluctuation capitalised of Rs.90,61,502/- (Previous Year Rs.-2,74,44,487/-)

5. The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For P.C. Goyal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Tima -Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited
\ ‘-\/M\ M

Firm Regjstration No. 002368N

.._,‘_\_"\_,‘k- ?&,L/:- =
O T
Qs i Neefesh Gupta
M.P.Jain 4 Director A Whole Time Director
Partner % DIN - 06687420

DIN - 05277483 V\r"
M.Na. 082407 60\
Place . Mew Delli Manoj Kumar Agarwal

Dated : 18th May 2018 CFO




Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited
“STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

A. Equity Share Capital

(Amount in‘ 7)

As at April 1, 2016 599,950,000
Changes in equity share capital during F.Y.2016-17 =
Balance as at March 31, 2017 599,950,000
Changes in equity share capital during F.Y.2017-18 -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 599,950,000
B. Other Equity
Items of Other
Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Income
Particulars Total
Securities Re-measurement of
Premium Retained Earnings the net defined
Reserve benefit Plans
Balance as at Aprill, 2016 976,100,000 (157,197,047) (302,166) 818,600,787
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2016-17 - 16,055,036 i 16,055,036
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit Plans - - 679,048 679,048
Balance as at March 31, 2017 976,100,000 | (141,142,011) 376,882 835,334,871
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2017-18 - 104,398,021 - 104,398,021
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit Plans - - (270,897) (270,897)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 976,100,000 (36,743,990) 105,985 939,461,995

As per our report of even date attached

For P.C. Goyal & Co.

Chartered Accountants : } ‘-Ii N)

Firm Regjsfrati .002368N ! 5
A X0
/ J; Umesh Chopr.

M.P.Jai Director
Partner DIN - 05277483
M.No. 082407

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 18th May 2018

For and on behalt ot the Board of Directors ot
Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

od"ﬁ)\
Manoj Kumar Agarwal
CFO

i

Neelesh Gupta
Whole Time Director
DIN - 06687420



Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

_ Nules W Tinaiidial Slaleinenls

1. Praperty, Plant and Equipment

(Amount in ¥)

Particulars Buildings Pla'nt ks qfﬁce Furn‘lture e Vehicles Computers Total
Equipments Equipments Fixtures

Gross Block

As at April 1, 2016 299,358,705 | 2,724,186,793 1,755,952 1,307,025 1,526,297 602,590 | 3,028,737,362

Additions - 26,790,332 895,089 283,275 - 1,568,978 29,537,674

Disposal/Adjustments - -27,444,487 - - - - -27,444,487

As at March 31, 2017 299,358,705 2,723,532,638 2,651,041 1,590,300 1,526,297 2,171,568 3,030,830,549

Additions 96,476,583 77,628,965 427,199 31,388 - 553,066 175,117,201

Disposal/Adjustments - 9,061,502 1,617 2,513 - 19,676 9,085,308

As at March 31, 2018 395,835,288 2,810,223,105 3,079,857 1,624,201 1,526,297 2,744,310 3,215,033,058

Accumulated Depreciation :

As at April 1, 2016 16,137,006 149,870,630 718,300 779,270 453,702 243,569 168,202,477

Charge for the year 7,365,728 79,521,736 404,105 323,825 226,710 118,935 87,961,039

Disposal/Adjustments - z x s - - -

As at March 31, 2017 23,502,734 229,392,366 1,122,405 1,103,095 680,412 362,504 256,163,516

Charge for the year 8,997,900 87,067,644 401,997 125,319 226,710 608,885 97,428,455

Disposal/Adjustments - -5 1,528 2,512 - 19,676 23,711

As at March 31, 2018 32,500,634 316,460,005 1,525,930 1,230,926 907,122 991,065 353,615,682

Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2016 283,221,699 | 2,574,316,163 1,037,652 527,755 1,072,595 359,021 2,860,534,885

As at March 31, 2017 275,855,971 2,494,140,272 1,528,636 487,205 845,885 1,809,064 | 2,774,667,033

As at March 31, 2018 363,334,654 2,493,763,100 1,553,927 393,275 619,175 1,753,245 2,861,417,376

2. Intangible Assets

Particulars Software

Gross Block

As at April 1, 2016 385,819

Additions 157,182

Disposal/Adjustments -

As at March 31, 2017 543,001

Additions 90,270

Disposal/Adjustments -

As at March 31, 2018 633,271

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2016 164,347

Charge for the year 93,864

Disposal/Adjustments +

As at March 31, 2017 258,211

Charge fur Lhe year 115,348

Disposal/Adjustments -

Ac at March 71, 2018 . ar,ee0

Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2016 221,472

As at March 31, 2017 284,790

As at March 31, 2018 259,712




Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
(Amount in ¥)

Particulars Asa Asat
§ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
3. Other non-current financial assets
Securlty Deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 183,799 173,885
Derivative Financial Asset 27,316,680 -
Total Other non current financial assets 27,500,479 173,885
4. Inventories
Stores and spares 59,351,915 58,127,426
Total Inventories 59,351,915 58,127,426
5. Trade receivables
Unsacured
Considered good 89,105,380 57,302,229
Total Trade Receivables 89,105,380 57,302,229
6. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
On current accounts 4,484,210 4,398,601
Cash on hand 20,641 -
Total Cash and Cash equivalents 4,504,851 4,398,601
7. Other current financial assets
Earnest money deposit 2,932,650 3,890,7C0
Interest receivable* - 5,198,212
Other receivables (financial assets) # 159,606,494 246,914,670
Total other financial assets 162,539,144 256,003,582 _
* Refer Note no 28.13 for details of interest receivable from related party.
#Includes REC & Carbon Credits Receivables.
8. Current tax assets {net)
Advance taxation (net of provision) = e A7B913.
Total Current Tax Assets sk - i o S015013
9. Other current assets
Advances to vendors 3,270,220 3,121,462
Advance to Employees 336,988 382,876
Other receivables ) 2,592,853 5,825,784
Total Other Current Assets 6,200,061 ...9,330,122
10. Cquity Shaie Capilal
Authorised .
(i) 62,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 620,000,000 620,000,000
620,000,000 620,000,000
Issued
59,995,000 Equity Shares of 10/-each fully paid up by 599,950,000 599,950,000
599,950,000 589,950,000
Subscribed and fully paid up
59,995,000 Equity Shares of 10/-each fully paid up 589,950,000 599,950,000
Tntal Fauity Share Capital 500,050,000 599,950,000
(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares:
Equity shares
Sharos outstanding as at the beginning of the year £9,995,000 RY.4945.100
Sharei vulslunding us ut the end of the year 39,595,000 24,945,000
(b) Petails of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:
As March 31, 2018 As March 31, 2017
Name of Shareholders . of
o re No. of shares % of holding Noid % of holding
shares
JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited* 59995000 100 59995000 100
Total 59995000 100 59995000 100

* Including 6 Shares held by Person/Companies as nominees of JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited




Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
(Amount in ¥)

As at As at

icull
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(c) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
The Campany has only ong ¢I35s of sauity shares having a nar valun of 7 10/ par nauity share: Fach pauity sharrhalder i entitled ta ana vists par
share.

(d) Nature and Purpose of Reserves
Security premium reserve is created when shares are issued at premium. The Company may issue fully paid-up bonus shares to its members out of
the security premium reserve account and can use this reserve for buy-back of shares.

Retained Earnings represent the undistributed profits of the Company.

Other Comprehensive Income Reserve represent the balance in equity for items to be accounted in Other Comprehensive Income, OCl is classified
into i). Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss ii). Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss.

11. Non Current borrowings

a) Secured
(i) Term Loan from banks 201,877,534 329,256,068
(i) External Commercial Borrowings from Banks 559,082,230 725,770,845
Secured Non Current borrowings 760,959,764 1,055,026,913
(i} Term loan from ICICI Bank outstanding amount Rs.36,75,00,004/- (Including Rs 16,33,33,328 in current maturity) carries interest@12,35% (ICICI
Moo 1 3.406) rapayable in 12 guarber v euudl neballinwibe Tom SEpeber 2007, L 5 Seeneed by Wy of TIes FAR PRSI BARZE @i 41 doally

fixed assets both , present or future and First charge on all book debts, operating cash flows, revenues & receivables of the company, present &
future; pari passu charge with working capital lenders and term lenders. Loan is also secured by Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of Jindal Saw

Limited.
(ii) External Commerclal Borrowlngs trom bank for USD 60,84,800-Ks 39,65,46,416 (Including Rs. Y,491,36,604 in current maturity), as on 31st

Maicli 2018 & USD 76,006,000 Ry 49,82,11,070 (Including R, 9,06,42,214 In cUrr&nt maturity) as oi 315t March 2UL7 carnies inleresl @ ¥.65% p.a.
repayable in 20 half yearly structured installments. Another External Commercial Borrowings from bank for Japanese Yen 56,88,84,000 - Rs
34,88,26,557 (Including Rs, Ri72:24,139 in enrrent maturity) as nn 315t March 2018 & lapanese Yan 71,11,05.000 « Re 41,400,486 (Inclurding Py
¥,28,00,45/ in current maturity) as on 31st March 2017 interest @ 12.14% p.a. repayable in 20 half yearly structured installments. Loan is
repayable as under:- :

FY 2019-20: Rs.27,95,41,115/- and FY 2020-21:Rs .27,95,41,115/-

[Securer aeainst hynntheratinn hy way of first charga nf mmvahle fived sefate nf tha campany, both pracent and future, all boolw dobts G
intangible assets and corporate guaranteed by JITT Urban Infrastructure Limited and Jindal ITF Limited and utiderlaking by Jindal Saw Limited).

The loan is also secured against pledged of 1,79,98,500 equity shares of the company.
(iii) The term loan from ICICI bank as on 31.03,2018 is net of Grant of Rs.10,00,00,000/- (Previous year Rs.4,50,00,000/-) received from Ministry of

New and Renewable Energy ( WTE division) vide letter sanction letter no 10/5/2005-UICA (Vol. IV) dated 30th March 2017,
(iv) There is no default in repayment of principal and interest thereon.

(v) Laan i3 el af aiwilisaliv sl

b) Unsecured

Inter-coroorate lpan * - 202081668 A

Unsecured Non Current borrowings 202,981,665 92,822,411

Total Non Current Borrowings 963,941,429 1,147,849,324
* Loan is repayable in 3 years from date of last disbursement i.e. 20th November 2017 and carries jnterest @ 11%

12. Other non-current financial liabilities

Derivative Financial Liability ; - 8,525,891
Total other non-current financial liabilities - 8,525,891

13. Provisions

Provision for Employee benefits

- Gratuity aRY A0
Leave Encashment 3.34?2.0R4 "
Total Non current Provisions 4,329,503 -

14, Deferred tax liahilities (Net)
Temporary difference
& Nefarrad Tay Liahility

Difference between book & tax base related to fixed assets 425,920,965 -
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 425,920,965 -
B. Deferred Tax Assets
(i) Disallowance under Income Tax Act 1,597,214 -
(ii) Carried Forward losses 398,206,677 -
Total Deferred Tax Assets 399,803,891 T o
C. Total Temporary Differences 26,117,074
D. Mat Credit Entitlement 15,083,990

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (C-D) 11,033,084




Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
(Amount in )

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
15. Other non-current liabilities
Government Grant (refer note no. 28.17) 85,714,285 90,476,190
Total other non-current liabilities 85,714,285 90,476,190
16. Current borrowings
a) Secured
From banks
Working capital demand loans 30,176,469 2,844,847
] Secured borrowings 30,176,469 2,844,847
b) Unsecured J
Loans from related parties * 191,657,677 205,500,000
Unsecured borrowings 191,657,677 205,500,000
Total current borrowings 221,834,146 208,344,847

Secured by First Pari Passu charge over Book debts and other Receivables and First charge over all other current assets. Facility is also secured by
second charge over movable fixed assets and corporate guarantee of Jindal ITF Limited.
* Refer Note no 28.13 for details of Loan from related party.

17. Trade payables

Others ) 9,208,647 11,814,122
Micro and Small Enterprises* 5.304.538 4,680,980
Total Trade payables 14,513,185 16,495,102

* Principal amount outstanding as at the year end, there is nn averdie amnunt of principal and interest dua to Micro and small antorprisos: During
the year, no interest has been paid to such parties. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information available with the Company

18. Other current financial liabilities

Current Maturities of Long Term debts-Secured 349,694,071 247,691,111
Interest Accrued but not due 7,244,443 3,919,005
Capital Creditors 9,518,905 29,715,494
Security Deposit 30,000 30,000
Payable to related parties * - f5,149,6R0
Other outstanding financial liahilities 7,38A,15N A,007,740
Dues to Employees _ 3,116,569 el -
Total other financial liabilities 371,990,138 395,948,616

* Refer Note no 28.13 for details of payable to related party.

19. Other current liabilities

Advance from customer 102,004 -

Statutcry Dues 9,188,905 1,992,182

Government Grant (refer note no. 28.17) 4,761,905 4,761,905
Total other current liabilities 14,052,814 = 6,754,087

20. Current provisions

Piuulslui Tui Ciipluyee bepells

Grotuity LUl
Leave Encashment 127,211 -
Total current provisions 159,282 o R T 2R

21.Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Provision for income tax 7,548,785
Total Current tax liabilities (Net) 7,548,785




Timarpur-Okhla Waste Management Company Private Limited

Nntes tn Finanrial Statements

(Amount in )

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

22. Gross revenue from operations

a) Sale of products

Sale of Power 565,806,585 491,822,524
Total Sale of products 565,806,585 491,822,524
b) Other Operating revenues
Income from sale of Carbon Credit - 4,193,170
Sale of Renewable Energy Certificates 7,800,900 -
Government Grant 4,761,905 4,761,905
Total Other Operating revenues 12,562,805 8,955,075
Total Revenue from operations 578,369,390 500,777,599
Timarpur-Qkhla Waste Management Company Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
{Amount in %)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

23, Other income

Interest Income
Scrap Sale
Other Non Operating Income*
Total other income
* Includes Excess Provision Written back & Miscellaneous Income

24, Employee benefit expenses

Salary and Wages
Contribution to Provident and other funds
Workmen & Staff welfare expenses
Total Employee benefit expenses

25. Finance Cost

a) Interest Expense
-on Term loans
- on Bank Borrowings
- Other Interest
b) Bank and Finance charges
c) Net (gain)/loss on derivatives
Total Finance Cost

26. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation
Amaortisation
Total Depreciation and amortisation

27. Other expenses

Stores and Spares Consumed
Power and Fuel

Ash Handling Charges

Water Charges

Repairs to Plant and Machinery
Rent

Rates and Taxes

Insurance

Repair and Maintenance-Others
Travelling and Conveyance
Vehicle Upkeep and Maintenance
Postage and Telephones

Legal and Professional Fees
Directors' Meeting Fees

Auditors' Remuneration

Purchase of Renewable Energy Certificates
Advertisernent

Forwarding Charges (net)
Unscheduled Interchange Charges
Other Selling Expenses

Bad Debts written off

Net foreign currency (gain)/loss - operating expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses

532 5,776,209
6,009,947 s
) 56,522 6,503,423
6,067,001 12,279,632
82,036,080 83,242,334
2,365,943 3,719,207
3,678,656 4,220,920
88,080,679 91,182,461
137,841,083 171,750,369
1,292,335 1,935,496
37,312,629 14,323,007
986,357 1,110,105
(35,842,571) (23,866,911)
141,589,833 165,252,066
97,428,454 87,961,039
115,349 23,864
97,543,803 88,054,903
45,873,986 45,071,161
2,316,247 2,266,569
26,727,313 28,950,688
929,341 777,217
7,143,264 20,360,522
750,000 1,353,000
62,424 165,758
2,890,476 2,723,697
2,108,895 7,486,439
3,184,047 2,657,536
93,195 136,425
391,686 983,092
4,747,198 7,703,496
188,669 357,339
28,680 41,460
3,891,750 5
5,900 :
297,002 165,133
4,905,630 4,354,493
7,628,441 9,845,956
| - 347,077
(224,924) 1,637,505
12,663,350 15,111,516
126,602,570 152,496,079
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PANKAJ KANTHA & Co.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315T March, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

TIMARPUR-OKHLA WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
{Formerly known as TIMARPUR-OKHLA WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED}

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by TIMARPUR-OKHLA WASTE MANAGEMENT
COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing nnr apinion thoroon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Roa rd-processes and compliance-mechanisi in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by TIMARPUR-OKHLA WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (N}L- ——.
applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

Ay
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byc-laws fraiued thereunder; |\«
: o
¢)
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations madé&a/®
thereunder to the extent of F oreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings; Not applicable to the company during the Audit

Period)

© o o | 303, Level 4 (3rd Floor), 1/15, 15th East View, Tilak Nagar,
(M) 098- New Delhi-110018

pankaj@compsec.in



CORPORATE & LEGAL ADVISORS

PANKAJ KANTHA & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz. :-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, (Not applicable to the company during the - -
" Audit Period) i

& The Securities and Ex'change Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

(cj The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009: (Not applicable to the company during the
Audit Period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, (Not applicable to the
company during the Audit Period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit
Period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and (Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

We further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis and
representation made by the Company and its officers, the Company has complied with

a) Electricity Act, 2003 & The Electricity Rules, 2005 and i
b) Applicable Environmental Laws and Rules made thereunder and other laws applicablg..vg:;f_
Company. _ !,.f ' N

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: o

(i) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meetings of Board of Directors (S5-1) and the Gehel
Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(0) 011-4702-3110 | 303, Level 4 (3rd Floor), 1/15, 15th East View, Tilak Nagar,
) fos 8 S0 New Delhi-110018

pankaj@compsec.in
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

Whereas in terms of the provisions of Section 203 of The Companies Act, 201 3, the company was
required to have certain Key Managerial Personnel (KMP). The Company has not appointed a
CGompany Secretary in terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, ‘

However, we have been intimated that the Board has resolved the appointment of Mr. Nitish
Kumar as a Company Secretary w.ef 1 August, 2018 in their Board Meeting held on 27 July,
2018.

We further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
halance of Executive Dircctors, Non-Lxeculive Dlrectors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
hotes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions at Board Meetings and committee
meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minntes nf the Meetings of the board
of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and
authorised representatives during the conduct of Audit and review of Internal Auditor’s Report,
periodical Compliance Reports are taken on record by the Audit Committee / Board of
Directors of the Company. In our opinion there are adequate systems and processes in the
thnipdny tommensurate with the size aud uperdlions of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

(Proprietor)
ACS No.:19829
CPNo.: 7111
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27/07/2018

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-1 and
forms an integral part of this report.

S 303, Level 4 (3rd Floor), 1/15, 15th East View, Tilak Nagar,

(M) 098-9923-3504 -
pankaj@compsec.in New Delhi-110018
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‘Annexure -1’

To,

The Members,

TIMARPUR-OKHLA WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
A-1, UPSIDC Industrial Area, Nandgaon Road,

Kosi Kalan, Distt. Mathura - 281403 (U.P.)

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 is to be read along with
this letter.

Management’s Responsibility

1. Itis the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations
and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

J. We believe that audlt evidence and intormation obtained from the Company’s management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
_ of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.
6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
account of the Company.

PORRT IO o N

For PANKA] KANTHA & CO.:

ANKA] KANTHA
(Proprietor)
ACS No.:19829

CP No.: 7111
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27/07/2018
o
t
et e 303, Level 4 (3rd Floor), 1/15, 15th East View, Tilak Nagar,

(M) 098-9923-3504 : )
pankaj@compsec.in New Delhi-110018



CORPORATE & LEGAL ADVISORS

PANKAJ KANTHA & Co.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

FORM NO. MGT-8

[Pursuant to section 92(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 11(2) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Certificate by a PCS

We have examined the registers, records and books and papers of M/S TIMARPUR- OKHLA
WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED (“Formerly known as TIMARPUR- OKHLA
WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED”) (the Company) as required to be
maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under for the
financial year ended on 31% March, 2018. In our opinion and to the best of my information and

according to the examinations carried out by us and explanations furnished to us by the company; its
officers and agents, we certify that:

(A) The annual return states the facts as at the close of the aforesaid financial year correztly and
adequately.

(B) During the aforesaid financial year the company has complied with provisions of the Act &
Rules made there under in respect of:

1. its status under the Act :

4. maintenance of registers/records & making entries therein within the time prescribed
therefor;

3. filing of forms and returns as stated in the annual return, with the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, the Tribunal, Court or other
authorities within/beyond the prescribed time ;

4. calling/cunvening/holding meetings ot Board of directors or its committees, if any, and
the meetings of the members of the company on due dates as stated in the annual return
in respect of which meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings including
the circular resolutions and resolutions passed by postal ballot, if any, have been
properly recorded in the Minute Book/registers maintained for the purpose and the same
have been signed:;

5. closure of register of members/Security holders, as the case may be.  Not Applicable

6. Advanrces/loane to itc dirootora and/o; peisulls Ll fliins of companies referred in section

185 of the Act; Not Applicable

7. contracts/arrangements with related parties as specified in section 188 of the Act;

8. issue or allotment or transfer or transmission or buy back of securities/ redem
preference shares or debentures/alteration or reduction of share capital/con
shares/securities and issue of security certificates in all instances :
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0. keeping in abeyaiice lhe iighls o dividend, rights shares and bonus shares pending
registration of transfer of shares in compliance with the provisions of the Act;

Not Applicable

10. declaration/payment of dividend; transfer of unpaid/unclaimed dividend/ other amounts
as applicable to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with section

125 of the Act; Not Applicable

11. signing of audited financial stafement as per the provisions of section 134 of the Act and
report of directors is as per sub - sections (3), (4) and (5) thereof :

12. constitution /appointment /re-appointments /retirement/ filling up casual vacancies/
disclosures of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and the remuneration paid to
them (The Company has been unable to appoint a Company Secretary in terms of
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 during the year. However, tho Company has
appointed a Company Secretary w.e.f. August 01, 201 8);

13. appuintment/reappointment/filling up casual vacancies of auditors as per the provisions
of sectinn 139 nf the Act:

14. approvals required to be taken from the Central Government, Tribunal, Regional
Director, Registrar, Court or such other authorities under the various provisions of the
Act:

15. acceptance/renewal/repayment of deposits; Not Applicable

16. borrowings from its directors, members, public financial institutions, banks and others
and creation/madification/satisfaclion uf charyes in that respect, wherever applicable;

17. loans and investments or guarantees given or providing of securities to other bodies
corporate or persons falling under the provisions of section 186 of the Act;

10. alteration ol lhe provisiong of the memorandum and/or articles of association of the
company; Not Applicable

PANKAJ KANTHA
Proprietor
C.P. No.: 7111
Place: New Delhi
Date: October 30, 2018
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